UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENC‘Y
REGION 7 ‘

901 NORTH FI¥TH STREET
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR

IN THE MATTER OF:

)
: ) Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0022
AMBRUST REALTY RENTALS. )
OMAHA, NEBRASKA )
‘ ) SUPPLEMENTAL
) MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT
: ) OF MOTION FOR DEFAULT
Respondent ) ORDER

The Order to Supplement Reéord .(Order), dated July 24, 2009, requireﬁ Complainant to
1) address the service of the Motion for Defauit Order to the Respondent; and 2) to discuss the
legai and factual basis for the proposed penélty. Pursuant to that Ordér, Complainant, the United
States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7 (EPA) hereby incorporates by refefence its
initial Motion for Defauit Order, dated March 25, 2009, and supplements it as follows:

1. SERVICE OF FOR DEFAULT ORDER MOTION ON RESPONDENT WAS PROPER

The regulations at 40 C.FR. § 22.5(b)(2) state that ali filed documents other than the
complaint, rulings, ﬁrder, and deciéions “shaill be served personaﬂy,, by first claés mail (including
certified mail, returﬁ receipt requested, Overnight Expreés and Priority Mail), or by any reliable
.commermal delivery service.” Furthermore, the regulatzons at 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(a)(3) states that a
“certificate of service shall accompany each document filed or served in the proceedmg The
non-moving party then has fifteen days after being served with a motion to file any written

responses. 40 C.F.R. § 22.16(b).
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On March 27, 2009, EPA mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of the
~ Motion for Default Order and accompanying documents to Respondent’s business address. A
copy of the signed and dated certificate of service is attached as Exhibit 1. The US Post Office
attempted to deliver this package on April 1, 2009 and agaiﬁ on April 8, 2009 to no avail. On |
Ap.ril 16, 2009, the package was returned to EPA. A copy of the envelope is attached as Exhibit
2 | |

On July 27, 2069, EPA again attempted to send the same package of documents to
Respondent via Federal Express déiivery servicé to Respondent’s business. This package was
returned to EPA on August 6, 2009 as undeliverable. See Exhibit 3.

On August 3, 2009, EPA again sent a copy of the Motion for Default Order to
Respondent via Federal E.xpress. This package was sent to Respondent’s home address.
Respondent signed for this package on Auguét 5, 2009. See Exhibit 4.

Based on these facts, EPA asserts that its numerous attempts to éerve the Motion for
Default Order upon the Respondent aﬁd Respondent’s signature on August 5, satisfy

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(b)(2).

11. LEGAL AND EACT UAL BASIS OF PENALTY CALCULATION

The proposed penalty of $22,000 is proper for the following reasons:

A. Background |

Congress passed the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Redﬁctio'n Act bf 1992 (“the
Act™), 42 U.S.C. §§ 4851 to 4856, to address the need to control exposure to iead-based paint
and lead-based paint hazards, especially to children age 6 and under. The Act amended the
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C. § 2689 by adding Segtions 401 to 412,15

U.S.C. §§ 2681 to 2692, Pursuant to Section 1018 of the‘Act, regulations were issued on March
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6, 1996, and codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F, Disclosdre of Known Lead-Based Paint
and/or Lead-Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or Lease of Residential Property (“Disclosure
Rule”).

The purpose of the Disclosure Rule is to ensure that individuals and families receive the
information necessary to make informed housing decisions to reduce their risk of exposure to
lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. As such, the Disclosum Rule requires that
lessors of most résidential housing built before 1978: a) disclose the presence of known lead-
based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing; b) pr_ovide lessees with any
available records or reports pertaining to tﬁe p‘rbéence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint

‘hazards; ¢) provide lessees with a federaﬂy approved lead hazard information pamphlet; and d)
include certain disclosure and aclmowiedgrnént language in the leasing contract. The faﬁm:e or
refusal to .cornply with the regulations is a violation of Section 1018 of the Act and Section 409
of TSCA.

B. Respondent violated the Disclosure Rule

As outlined in EPA’s Complaint filed on August 1, 2008, EPA inspected Respondent’s |
business on January 15, 2008, to determine his compliance with the Disclosure Rules (“the
Inspection™). EPA reviewed the leases for two properties: 3454 S. 82nd Street #3, Omaha
Nebraska, 68124; and 3208 Marcy Street #4, Omaha Nebraska 68105. Respondent is the owner
and lessor, as deﬁned by 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, of both these properties. Further, EPA collected a
statement from Respondenf, in wﬁich he stated that he had not been ﬁiaking any of his- |
prospective tenants a@are of lead-based paint hazards. EPA also received a copy of a March 21,
2006 letter from the Douglas County Health Departmeht to Respondent, where he was made

aware of the dangers of lead-based paint hazards to children.
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1. COuni 1:3454 S. 82nd Street #3

This property was constructed in 1910, and is therefore target housing as defined by 40
C.F.R. § 745.103. During the Inspection, EPA collected a copy of a lease shoWing that
Respondent entered into a contract to lease this unit on or about April 1, 2006. At tﬁe time of
this ob}igation, there were two children, ages 4 and 6, who would be residing in this unit for the
term of the lease. The Inspection also revealed that Respondept failed to provide an EPA-
approved lead hézard pamphlet or perform any other lead-based paint disclosure activities
required by 40 C.F.R.?aﬁ 745 Subpart F before the lessee was obligéted under contract for lease
of this property. |

2. Count 2: 3208 Marcy Street #4

This property was constructed in 1913, and is therefore, target housing as defined by 40
C.F.R. 745.103. Duriﬁg the Inspection, EPA collected a copy of a lease showing that
Respondent entered into a contract to lease this unit on or about October 27, 2006. At the time
of this obligation, there was a 4-year-old child who Wéuld be residing in this unit fér the term of -
the lease. The Inspection also revealed that Respondent failed to provide an EPA-approved lead
hazard pamphlet 61‘ perform any other lead-based paint disclosure activities required- by 40
C.F.R. Part 745 Subpart F before the lessee was obligated under contract for lease of this
property. |

C. The Proposed Penalty was Properly Calculated in Accofdance with the TSCA
Statutory Factors and with Established EPA Poilicies.

Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. 2615(a) provides for civil penalties for violations of

TSCA or TSCA rules, and requires the consideration of eight named statutory factors in any
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.penaity agsessment, as well as ‘<‘0the1' factors are justice may require.” The ﬁrsf four Statutory
factors — nature, circumsfances, exteﬁt, and gravity - relate to the violation. 15 U.S.C.

§ 2615(&)(]3). ‘The remaining statutory factors — culpability, ability to pay, effect on ability to
continue to do business, and history of prior violation — relate to the violator. Id.

EPA issued Section 1018 — Disclosure Rule Enforcement Response and Penalty Policy
.(hereinafter “Penalty Policy”) in December 20072 (Exhibit 5) to ?rovide guidance n applying
the statutory factors to violations and to ensure that civil pénalties due to violations of the
Disclosure Rule are assessed in a fair, uniform, and consistent manner. The Penalty Policy,
which is publicly available on EPA’s internet site, also ensures that penalties are appropriate for
the violations committed; that economic incentives for violating TSCA are eliminated; and that
persons will be deterred from committing TSCA violations.

1. Violation |

Tn this case, a civil penalty is the appropriate response to the violations of the Disclosure
Rule because no disclosure activities were performed at either property and there were children
age 6 and under present at each property during the term of the fease. In its Complaint, EPA.
proposed two counts of violations of the Disclosure Rule, one for each property in question.
Because Counts 1 and 2 have similar facts the analysis of the penalty for each count is similar
and thus combined. The penalty of $1 1 ,000 per count, for a total proposed penaity of $22,000 is
appfopriate for the following reasons: |

a) Nature of Violation

! This Penalty Policy supercedes the February 2000 Section 1018 — Disclosure Rule Enforcement Policy. Note,
however, that the penalty calculated and the analysis of the statutory factors would be the same under either policy.
2 The Penalty Policy also takes into account the increase in the maximum statutory penalty required by the Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-134, 110 Stat. 1321, 1358 (1996).
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EPA’s Guidelines for Assessment of Civil Penalties Under Section 16 of the Toxic
Substances Control Act; PCB Penalty ‘Policy, 45 -Fed. Reg. 59771 (1980) (TSCA Civil Penalty
Guidelines) describes the “nature” of the violation as the essential character of the \fiolation that
is best defined by the set of requirements violated. The requirements of the Disclosure Rﬁle are
most appropriately characterized as “hazard assessment” in nature because it is designed to
- provide potential lessees of 4target housing.with information that will permit them to weigh énd
asséss the risks presented by the actual or possible presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-
based paint haza?d,s in the target housing they may lease. See Penalty Policy at 12.

In this case, thé lessees were deprived of the ability to make an informed decision aﬁd to
knowingly accept the risks associated with renting a home with potential lead-based péint and |
lead-based paint hazards because they were not given aﬁy information on these potential hazards
at the outset. This information would have been barticularly important to the lessees in this
situation, because both had children age 6 and under who are at higher risk for Jead poisoning.

Appendix B of the Penalty Policy delinéates the potential violations of the Disclosure
Rule, .each with its own essential character (and thus “nature”), and each having a direct effect on
fhe measure used to determine which ‘.‘circ.umstances” and “extent” categories are selected on the
gravity-based penalty matrix. In this case, for both properties, Respondent:

e failed to provide lessees with an EPAuappi‘oved léad hazard information/pamphlet
pursuant to 40 C.E.R. § 745.107(a)(1);

e failed to include as an attachment or within the contract to lease target housing,
the Lead Warning Statement pursuant to 40 C.E.R. § 745.113(b)(1); |

s failed to include, as an attacﬁment or with the contract to lease target housing, a

statement by the lessor disclosing the presence of known lead-based paint and/or
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lead~ba;§ed paint hazards or indicating no knowledge thereof pursuant to 40 C.F.R.
- §745.113(b)X2);

e failed to include, as an attachment or within a contract to lease target housing, a
list of any records or reports 'avaiiable to the lessor that pertain to the presence of
any known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing
or to indicate that no such records are available .pursuant to 40 CFR.

§ 745.113(b)(3);

J fail_ed to include, as an attachment or within a contract to lease target housing, a
étatement by the lessee affirming receipt of the information required by 40 C.F.R.
§§ 745.113(b)(2) and (b)(3) and the lead hazard pamphlet as specified in 40
CFR. § 745.113(b)(4); and |

s failed to include, as an attachment or within a contract to lease target housing, the
éignatures of the lessor and lessees ccrﬁfying to the éccuracy of their statéments,
as well as dates of said signatures, pursulant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6).

In calculating the penalty, Complainant éhose to consolidate all of these violations into

“one count for each property. In both cases, the penalty was calculated for Respondent’s failure
to prbvide its lessees with an EPA-approved lead hazard information/pamphlet, prior to their
obligation under contract to lease the target housing.
b) Circumstances

The “circumstances” reflect the probability of harm res;zlting from a particular type of
violation. Penalty Policy at 12. For a Disclosure Rule yiolation, the primary circumstance to be
considered is the lessee’s ability to i)ro_perly assess and weigh .the factors associated with human

health risk when leasing target housing. See Id. In this case, the greatest deviation from the
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regulations oceurred because there was absolutely no disclosure_ of lead-based paint or lead-
based paint hazards before either lessee was obligated under contract. Because there was a high
likelihobd that the lessees were uninformed about the hazards associated with lead-based paint,
there is a greater likelihood of harm due to exposure to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint '
hazards. Accor(iing to the Penalty Policy, no disclosure or distribution of the EPA approved-

pamphlet, is a Circumstance Level 1. Penalty Policy at 27. These are characterized as

violations ha\}i.ng a high probability of impairing the lessee’s ability to assess the information
reéuifed to be disclosed.
¢) Extent of Violation

The statutc;ry factor “extent” of violation is used fo consider the degree, range, or scope
of the violation’s potential for harm. Pen_alty Policy at 12. In the contexf of the Disclosure Rule,
the measure of this factor focuses on the overall intent of the rule, which is to prevent childhéod
lead poisoning. Id. The Penalty Policy characterizes specific violations of the Disclosure Rule
as “major,” “significant,” or “minor” depending on two facts: the age of children who live iﬁ the
target housing; and whether a pregnant woman lives in the target housing. According to the
Penalty Policy, childreﬁ under the age of six are most likely to be adversely affected by lead
exposure aﬁd to exhibit other _16ng~téxm effects. f’enalty Policy at 13.

In the case at hand, there were children at or under the age of six in each property for
which counts are taken. Under the Penalty Policy, these violations would be characteﬁzed as.a
major in extent because there is potential for -“serious” damage to the children’s health. Penalty
Policy at 12. If the lessees were informed of the risks they could ﬁave chosen not to fent these

properties thus eliminating any risk to their children. If they decided to rent, they could have at

least taken protective measures to minimize the exposure of their children to potential lead
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hazards. Because they were not properly informed in accordance with the Disclosure Rule they
could exercise neither choice, but rather were inadvertently exposing their children to potential
hazards.
d) Gravity of Violation

According to the TSCA Civil Penalty Guidelines, f‘gravity” is the overall seriousness of
the violation. It is a dependent variable that reiies" on the évaiuation of nature, extent and
circumstances. Penalty Policy at 11. Those other factors will determine a dollar figure on the
penalty matrix, which m turn determines the gravity based penalty. In this case, according to the
penalty matrix in Appendix B of the Penalty Policy for a “circumstance” designation of level 1
and an “extent” designation of rﬁaj or, the gravity based penalty for each property leased is
$11,000 for a total penalty of $22,000. |

2. Analysis of the Violator

With respect fo the violator, EPA must consider the ability to pay; ability to continue to
do business; any history of any prior violation; the degree of cﬁlpa}bility; and other factors as
justice méy be required. The Penalty Policy advises EPA.to make all appropriate upward
adjustménts of the penalty amount prior to issuance of the proposed penalty. Penalty Policy at
17. The Penalty Policy guides that downward adjustments generally should not be made until
after fhe proposed penalty has been iséued, at which time the burden of persuasion.that
downward adjustment is proper should be placed on tﬁe respondent. Further, in most cases, |
these factors are to be considered either during settlemeﬁt negotiations or litigétion. Id. There
were no adjustments made to the grav‘ity portion of the penalty based én these factors for the
following reasons:

a) Ability to Pay/Continue in Business
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Respondent owns and/or leases ap‘iaroximately 14 propefties in the Omaha area. One of
these properties (3216 Marcy Street) has an assessed value of $‘1 18,000. These properties
suggest the presence of a significant asset base that could be accessed. Further, although he was’
informed of the opportunity to assert an “ability to pay” claim, Respondent has not provided any
documentation showing that he is unable to pay the penalty. Thus, EPA has no information from
Respondent that would indicate that it is appropriate to reduce the proposed penalty based on
harm to his business or his inabi}ify to pay the penalty. Therefore, no adjustments were made fo
the gravity portion due to this statutory factor.

b) History of Prior Violations
There are no records of any prior violations of the Disclosure Rule. Therefore, no
-adjustments to the gravity based penalty have been made as a result of this factor.
¢) Degree of Culpability

Culpability of the violator may be used to increase the penalty. Although Respondent
stated that he has “been remiss for some; time vis-3-vis alerting prospective tenants about lead-
based paint possible danger,” (sic), EPA has chosen not to adjust the penalty for this statutory
factor.

d) Other Matters as Justice may Require

There is no evidence to warrant adjusting the penalty based on this factor.

III. CONCLUSION

Because Respondent failed to file a timely answer in this matter and was properly served
with a Motion for Default Order, a ﬁnding of default is warranted. Further, as EPA has
effectively demonstrated above, a penalty of $22,000 is appropriate in this case. Respondent

should be held accountable for clearly violating the Disclosure Rule. by failing to perform any of
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the required disclosures. The penalty is proper because Respondent knew the dangers due to
exposure of lead to human heaith especially to the health of children. Yet for the two leases at
issue in this matter he disregarded his obligations under the Disclosure Rule. He chose not to
disclose thes-e dangers t§ the guardians of children age 6 and under. These children are the most
~ vulnerable members of the population and the ones that the rule was directly intended .to protect.
These two lessees were not able to make an informed decision as to whether to accept the risk of
lead exposure to fheir children by renting from Re_spéﬁdent. For these reasons the penalty of

$22,000 is an appropriate penalty to assess Respondent.

Respectfully Submitted,

\Pepiéifa O. Salisbury |
Attorney o
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In the Matter of Armbrust Realty Rentals
Docket No. TSCA-07-2008-0022

Cértiﬁcate of Service

I hereby certify that the foregoing Supplemental Memorandum in Support of Motion
for Defaunlt Order, dated August 7, 2009, was sent this day in the following manner to the
addresses listed below:

Original and copy to:

Kathy Robinson .
‘Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. EPA Region 7

901 North 5" Street
Kansas City, Kansas 66101

A bopy by Federal Express mail to:

Mr. Herbert J. Armbrust
Armbrust Realty Rentals

3728 Paddock Road

Omaha, Nebraska 68124-3830

6\&4\00(.

Daie
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Certificate of Service

I hereby certify that the foregoing Motion for Defauit O

was sent this day in the following manner to the addresses listed below:

Original and copy to:

Kathy Robinson

Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. EPA Region 7

901 North 5™ Street
Kansas City, Kansas 66101

Copies by certified mail to:

Mr. Herbert J. Armbrust

Armbrust Realty Rentals
3163 Leavenworth Street
Omaha, Nebraska 68105

?9”1)0 4

Date

rder, dated March 25, 2009,
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Certificate of Service

1 hereby certify that the attac;héd Motion for Default Order, dated March 25, 2009, was
sent this day in the following manner to the addresses listed below: :

Copies by Federal Express to:

Mr. Herbert J. Armbrust

Armbrust Realty Rentals
3163 Leavenworth Street
Omaha, Nebraska 68105

Date.

Y /WYX, sy
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Detailed Results

http://www.fedex.com/Tracking/Detail ?fic_start_url=&totalPieceNu...

[Enter fracking number

-Select time zone: [S

Detailed Resuifs

|
|
]

| Notifications

Tracking no.: 406238075224

@ E-mall notfigations -

Delivered

Shipment Dates

" Picked up “ tasit

Delivered
Signed for by: L.CLEARMAN

Destination

. Ship date @ Aug 4, 2000
. Delivery date®  Aug B, 2009 9:05 AM

KANSAS CITY, KS
Signaiure Proof of Defivery (@

Shipment Facts Help
| Service type Express Saver Pak Delivered o Shipping/Receiving
Weight 1.0 lbsf0.5 kg Reference $65581630863
. Shipment Travel History Help :

LAl shipment travel activity

Select time format: 12H § 24H

. Date/Time
_t Alg B, 2009 :05 AM

Aug 8, 2009 7:43 AM
Aug 6, 2000 6:45 AM

© Alig 6, 2009 4:27 A

Aug 8, 2008 3:26 AM
Aug 5, 2000 3:25 PM

L:Aug 5, 2000 10:36 AM

Algg 4, 2009 10:08 PM
“Aug 4, 2000 8:51 PM
Aug 4, 2009 12:41 PM

Aug 4, 2009 12:40 PM

is displayed in local time for the focation
. Activity . Location Detalls
KANSAS CITY, K8
[KANSAS CITY, MO
:KANSAS CITY, MO

KANSAS CITY, MO

Deiivered

‘On FedEx vehicle for delivery
Al local FedEx facility

At dest sort facility

‘Departed FedEx location MEMPHS, TN
in transit -MENIPHiS, ™
Arrived at FedEx location MEMPHIS, TN
: At local FedEx facility OMAHA, NE
Left FedEx origin facility OMAHA, NE
Shipment information sent to FedEx

;PiCked up OMAHA, NE

8/6/2009 1:26 PM
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§Eﬂtef tracking number

Detailed Results “5
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Notifications
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http://www fedex.com/Tracking/Detail?ftc_start_url=&totalPieceNu...

Tracking no.: 865581630863 ) & il notifications

- In transit
Iniiated  Picked up  Intransit  Delivered
' Delivery exception
OMAHA, NE
Shipment Dates Destination

 ‘Ship date (& . Jjui 27, 2009
- Shipment Facts Help
Service type Standard Envelope - Indirect Signature
i Required ‘
. Shipment Travel History Help

Select time zone: | S . Select fime format; 12H | 24H
‘Aﬁ shipment travel aclivity is di;piayed in local time for the iocation :
: 'DatelTime ‘ :Activity Location Details

Aug 4, 2009 12:27 PM %Package returned to shipper OMAHA, NE ' Package refurned o

Lo | shipper:408238075224

Aug 4, 2009 7:20 AM At local FedEx facility OMAHA, NE
" Aug 3, 2009 7:01 AM At focal FedEx facility OMAMA, NE

Aug 1, 2009 8:27 AM At Ioéa& FedEx facility 'OMAHA, NE
: Jut 31, 2009 715 AM At local FedEx facility OMAHA, NE

Jul 30, 2009 2:44 PM Atlocal FedEx facility OMAHA, NE

Jul -3{), 2008 1:17 PM Delivery exception OMAHA, NE :Customer not available or business%

) _ ] closed ‘

: Jut 30, 2009 8:10 AM -On FedEx wvehicle for delivery OMAHA, NE

Jul 29, 2009 3:30 PM At local FedEx facifity OMAHA, NE ! :
SJul 29, 2009 1:55 PM Delivery exception {OMAHA, NE Customer not available or business%
; : closed "

Jui 28, 2009 8111 AM On FedEx vehicle for delivery OMAHA, NE

Wul 28, 2006 3:23 PM At local FedEx facllity {OMAHA, NE ;
Jut 28, 2009 1:06 PM Delivery exception OMAHA, NE Customer not available or businessg
‘ ‘ closed

Jul 28, 2009 8:15 AM On FedEx vehicle for defivery OMAHA, NE i

Jul'28, 2009 7:14 AM. At locat FedEx facility VONIAHA. NE 3
© Jul 28, 2000 5:37 AM At dest sort facillty CMAHA, NE :

Jul 28, 2009 4:11 AM Departed FedEx location MEMPHIS, TN
EIJuI 27, 2509 1162 PM Arrived at FedEx focation MEMPHIS, TN

Jut 27, 2009 7:50 PM :Lefi FedEx origin facility KANSAS CITY, MO

Jul 27, 2009 5:49 PM Picked up KANSAS CITY, MO

8/6/2009 1:27 PM
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In the Matterbf Armbrust Realty Rentals
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Certificate of Service

I hereby certify that the attached Motion for Default Order, dated March 25, 2009, was
sent this day in the following manner to the addresses listed below:

Copy by Federal Express to:
Mr. Herbert J. Armbrust

"~ 3728 Paddock Road
Omaha, Nebraska 68124-3830

3 ' ‘?. | .
%\%\Qﬁ} ' | {V ‘é ;a:i {4 !ff ﬁ ?v/mM 2R

' Date C; O



FedEx Express ‘ U.S. Mail: PO Box 727

Customer Support Trace Memphis, TN 38194-4643
3875 Airways Boulevard
- Module H, 4¢h Floor Telephone: 801-369-3600

Exp

Memphis, TN 38116

August 6,2009

Dear Customer:

The following Is the proof-of-defivery for tracking number 865681630874.

Delivery Information:

Status: _ Delivered Delivery date: Aug 5, 2009 14:41
Signed for by: ‘H.ARMBRUST
Service type: Standard Envelope

Shipping Information:

Tracking number: 865581630874 Ship date: Aug 3, 2009
Recipient; Shipper.

uUs ‘ _ us

“Thank you for choosing FedEx Express.

FedEx Worldwide Customer Service
1.800.GoFedEx 1.800.463.3339
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Detaile.d. Results

Detailed Results I Notifications

hitp://www.fedex.com/Tracking/Detail ?fic_start_url=&totalPieceNu...

iEnter fracking number

. Tracking no.: 865581630874

@ E-mai notificalions

Deliverad el i
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Chapter |: Introduction

Chapter 1: Introduction e

, The revised Section 1018 — Disclosure Rule Enforcement Response and Penalty Policy

supersedes the February 2000 Section /018 -- Disclosure Rule Enforcement Response Policy. It
sets forth guidelines for the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA or the Agency) to use in
determining the appropriate enforcement response and penalty amount, in settlement or in
litigation, for violations of Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-Based-Paint Hazard Reduction
Act of 1992. The revisions in this policy take into account an increase in the maximum statutory
penalty required by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, recent case law
deveiopments and other relevant EPA policies that impact enforcement actions.

The purpose of this Enforcement Response and Penalty Policy (ERPP) is to provide
pred;ctable and consistent enforcement responses and penalty amounts for violations of Section
1018, yet retain flexibility to allow for individual facts and circumstances of a particular case.

This policy is not binding on the Agency. The policies and procedures set forth herein
are intended solely for the guidance of employees of the EPA. They are not intended to, nor do
they constitute a rulemaking by the EPA, nor do they impose requirements on EPA staff or the
regulated community. They may not be relied upon to create a right or a benefit, substantive or
procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any person. Further, this document is not
intended to limit the discretion of EPA staff. Enforcement staff should continue to make
appropriate case-by-case enforcement judgments guided, but not restricted or limited, by the -
policies contained in this document. '

I. Background

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has established the elevated
blood-lead level (EBL) of 10 micrograms per deciliter (Lig/dL) to be a level of concern for
children. In the early 1990s the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES)
data indicated that there were approximately 890,000 American children with levels greater
than 10 pg/dL. In addition, minority and low-income children were disproportionately affected.

Lead poisoning in children causes intelligence quotient deficiencies, reading and learning
disabilities, impaired hearing, reduced attention span, hyperactivity and behavior problems; in
severe cases it may lead to seizures, coma and death. NHANES data further indicated that in as
many as 4 million homes in the United States, children’s health was endangered by lead-based
paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. In response to this national crisis, Congress enacted Title
X: Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, 42 United States Code (USC)
Section 4851 (Title X).'

' The CDC’s recent statement on Preventing Lead Poisoning in Young Children, August 2005, recognized that recent
studies indicate that additional evidence exists of adverse health effects in children at biood lead levels of less than
10 pg/dL. However, the CDC has determined that it will not lower the level of concern at this time.
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